



# TOWN OF PALMER CONSERVATION COMMISSION

## Meeting Minutes

Tuesday, May 18<sup>th</sup>, 2021 – 6:30 PM  
LOCATION: VIRTUAL VIA ZOOM

Donald Blais, Chair  
Dorothy Lawrence, Vice Chair  
David Cotter  
Peter Izyk  
Nicholas Zeo  
Brenda Cole  
Mike Swiatek

Sarah Fortune, Interim  
Agent

**Members Present:** Donald Blais, Jr.  
Peter Izyk  
Dave Cotter (6:45 PM)  
Nicholas Zeo  
Brenda Cole

**Members Absent:** Dorothy Lawrence  
Mike Swiatek

**Also Present:** Sarah Fortune, Conservation Assistant  
Heidi Graf, BSC Group; 33 Waldo Street, Worcester, MA 01680  
Rob Natario, MassDOT; 811 N. King Street, Northampton, MA 01060  
Tom Lewis, TEC Associates; 46 Sawyer Street, South Portland, ME 04106

1. **Call to Order:** 6:36 PM – Donald Blais, Jr. (Chair)

a. **Roll call attendance:**

- i. **Donald Blais, Jr. – present**
- ii. **Dorothy Lawrence – absent**
- iii. **Peter Izyk – present**
- iv. **David Cotter – absent (enters at 6:45 PM)**
- v. **Nicholas Zeo – present**
- vi. **Brenda Cole – present**
- vii. **Mike Swiatek – absent**

2. **Chair, Member & Committee Reports**

a. **Possible resignation – Mike Swiatek**

Mike Swiatek expressed his concern about his current work load and missing recent meetings and informed the Agent that he might have to resign from the PCC. In the event that Mike does resign, there would be a vacancy on the PCC, and several residents have expressed their interest in joining the PCC.

3. **Review Mail/Phone Messages**

a. **NHESP draft Priority Habitat Map – public comment period from 5/3/21 to 7/3/21**

The PCC received notification from the Natural Heritage and Endangered Species Program (NHESP) regarding the public comment period on the draft Priority Habitat map, which goes from 5/3/2021 to 7/3/2021. Specifically, NHESP is requesting public comment on the status of areas proposed for delineation or removal as Priority Habitat regarding the physical or biological features of the habitat, or the current scope of existing development in the area. The Agent suggested, for example, that the town compost area off Old Warren Road be removed from Priority Habitat designation due to the current use of the area.

b. National Grid: Yearly Operational Plan (YOP)

The PCC received notification regarding the National Grid Yearly Operational Plan (YOP) for herbicide application to control post-emergent vegetation along the transmission line Right-of-Way in Palmer. The YOP is available to review by request.

c. Massachusetts Central Railroad: Yearly Operational Plan (YOP)

The PCC received notification regarding the Massachusetts Central Railroad. Yearly Operational Plan (YOP) for vegetation management activities along the railroad Right-of-Way in Palmer. The YOP is available to view by request.

**4. Approval of Minutes**

a. 4/6/2021

**Motion made by Nick Zeo to table the approval of the minutes from 4/6/2021 until 6/1/2021 at 6:30 PM**

**Motion seconded by Peter Izyk**

**No further discussion**

**Role call vote: Donald Blais, Jr. – aye; Peter Izyk – aye; Nicholas Zeo – aye; Brenda Cole - aye**

**Motion Caries 4-0-0**

a. 5/4/2021

**Motion made by Brenda Cole to approve the minutes from 5/4/2021 as written**

**Motion seconded by Peter Izyk**

**No further discussion**

**Role call vote: Donald Blais, Jr. – aye; Peter Izyk – aye; Nicholas Zeo – aye; Brenda Cole - aye**

**Motion Caries 4-0-0**

**5. Project Monitoring**

a. DEP # 256-0348: Meadowbrook Green Condo Ponds, pre-activity meeting on 5/13/2021

The pre-activity meeting for the aforementioned project occurred on 5/13/2021. All pre-activity meeting conditions were met by the applicant, so the start of work was authorized.

**6. Violations & Enforcement**

a. DEP # 256-0349 – 19 New Hampshire Ave

The Interim Agent re-inspected 19 New Hampshire Ave on 5/7/2021 to review for compliance with pre-activity requirements as set forth in the Order of Conditions for the project. The Interim Agent observed that the DEP file number was posted at the road, erosion sediment controls were installed, and the soil stockpile adjacent to an intermittent stream was removed from the site. The Interim Agent authorized the start of the remainder of the project as the site was in compliance with pre-activity requirements as set forth in the Order of Conditions.

b. L27 Springfield Street (Map 16-27)

The property owner of L27 Springfield Street informed the Interim Agent that he is having difficulty finding a consultant to design the stormwater management plan and wetland restoration plan for the site. The property owner will continue to be in contact with the PCC and will inform the Commission when he has obtained a consultant who can design the stormwater and restoration plans.

c. Jeep stuck at Midura Conservation Area

Dave Cotter reported that a 1993 Jeep is stuck in the power lines at the Midura Conservation Area. The Jeep was found without license plates or tires but Dave was able to get the VIN, which was provided to the police so that they can help track down the owner of the vehicle and hold them responsible for removal of the vehicle from conservation land.

d. First Street

The Interim Agent reported that she spoke to the police regarding the vandalism and prohibited use of bicycles on the loop trail at the Swift River Greenbelt Conservation Area off First Street. She requested that the police perform regular patrols of the area and the gazebo at approximately 5 PM, which is when there seems to be an increased amount of activity there. The Interim Agent will also continue to inspect the area at regular intervals for vandalism.

**7. Schedule of Public Meetings & Hearings**

- a. 7:03 PM RDA: MassDOT – Vegetation clearing along I-90: The applicant is requesting a determination to see if the work associated with proposed vegetation clearing within the Massachusetts Turnpike (I-90) Right-of-Way (ROW) is subject to the MA Wetlands Protection Act. Work is proposed to occur within the 100-foot Buffer Zone to Bordering Vegetated Wetlands, Bank, Riverfront Area, and Bordering Land Subject to Flooding is located within previously disturbed areas within the state highway layout.

Rob Natario of MassDOT was in attendance to present the project, stating that the work involves tree trimming along the final stretches of the MassPike to maintain sight distances and for the installation of signage; this work is follow up to a resurfacing project on the MassPike in four (4) towns. Tree trimming will occur within 20-feet of the edge of pavement in previously disturbed areas associated with the state highway right-of-way.

Donald Blais, Jr. opened the meeting for comments or questions by the PCC or members of the general public. The Interim Agent commented on the project stating that any cut vegetation must be removed from the site, rather than be chipped and spread out, in order to prevent the establishment of invasive plant species. There were no additional comments or questions by the PCC or members of the general public.

**Motion made by Dave Cotter to close the public meeting for the RDA submitted by MassDOT for vegetation clearing along the Massachusetts Turnpike (I-90) right-of-way at 7:10 PM**

**Motion seconded by Peter Izyk**

**No further discussion**

**Role call vote: Donald Blais, Jr. – aye; Dorothy Lawrence – aye; Peter Izyk – aye; Nicholas Zeo – aye;**

**Dave Cotter – aye; Brenda Cole - aye**

**Motion Caries 5-0-0**

**Motion made by Brenda Cole to make a Negative Determination, Box 2 that the work described in the Request is within an area subject to protection under the Act, but will not remove, fill, dredge, or alter that area. Therefore, said work does not require the filing of a Notice of Intent.**

**Motion seconded by Dave Cotter**

**No further discussion**

**Role call vote: Donald Blais, Jr. – aye; Dorothy Lawrence – aye; Peter Izyk – aye; Nicholas Zeo – aye; Dave Cotter – aye; Brenda Cole - aye**

**Motion Caries 5-0-0**

**Motion made by Brenda Cole to make a Negative Determination, Box 3 that the work described in the Request is within the Buffer Zone, as defined by the Regulations, but will not alter an area subject to protection under the Act. Therefore, said work does not require the filing of a Notice of Intent, subject to the Standard Special Conditions.**

**Motion seconded by Nick Zeo**

**No further discussion**

**Role call vote: Donald Blais, Jr. – aye; Dorothy Lawrence – aye; Peter Izyk – aye; Nicholas Zeo – aye; Dave Cotter – aye; Brenda Cole - aye**

**Motion Caries 5-0-0**

- b. 7:10 PM RDA: MECO – Utility pole installation, 3090 Palmer Street: The applicant is requesting a determination to see if the area and/or work associated with the installation of one (1) utility distribution pole P71-01 within the road shoulder of Palmer Street is subject to the Town of Palmer Wetlands Protection Ordinance. The distribution pole will be located within the Riverfront Area to the Ware River.

Heidi Graf of BSC Group was present to discuss the proposed project, which includes the installation of a utility pole within the Riverfront Area to the Ware River. The RDA was submitted under the Palmer Wetlands Protection Ordinance only as the work is an exempt activity under the WPA Regulations and is proposed within Riverfront Area only; the pole location is 105-feet from Bank of the Ware River, just outside of the Buffer Zone to Bank. The utility pole will be installed within 10-feet of the roadway on Palmer Street, and erosion controls will be used during construction. Excavated soils will be used to backfill the hole after the pole is installed. No tree trimming or removal is proposed.

Additional utility poles P71, P71-P89, and P72 will be installed; this work is also exempt as a maintenance activity under the WPA regulations.

Donald Blais, Jr. opened the meeting for comments or questions by the PCC and members of the general public; no one wished to comment on the project at this time.

**Motion made by Nick Zeo to close the public meeting for the RDA submitted by BSC Group for the installation of utility distribution pole P71-07 within the road shoulder of Palmer Street at 7:18 PM**

**Motion seconded by Peter Izyk**

**No further discussion**

**Role call vote: Donald Blais, Jr. – aye; Dorothy Lawrence – aye; Peter Izyk – aye; Nicholas Zeo – aye; Dave Cotter – aye; Brenda Cole - aye**

**Motion Caries 5-0-0**

**Motion made by Brenda Cole to make a Negative Determination, Box 6 that the area/work described in the Request is not subject to review and approval by the Palmer Wetlands Protection Ordinance, Chapter 143**

**Motion seconded by Nick Zeo**

**No further discussion**

**Role call vote: Donald Blais, Jr. – aye; Dorothy Lawrence – aye; Peter Izyk – aye; Nicholas Zeo – aye; Dave Cotter – aye; Brenda Cole - aye**

**Motion Caries 5-0-0**

**Motion made by Brenda Cole to make a Negative Determination, Box 2 that the work described in the Request is within an area subject to protection under the Act, but will not remove, fill, dredge, or alter that area. Therefore, said work does not require the filing of a Notice of Inten.**

**Motion seconded by Nick Zeo**

**No further discussion**

**Role call vote: Donald Blais, Jr. – aye; Dorothy Lawrence – aye; Peter Izyk – aye; Nicholas Zeo – aye; Dave Cotter – aye; Brenda Cole - aye**

**Motion Caries 5-0-0**

- c. 7:25 PM RDA: New England Central Railroad – delineation confirmation: The applicant is requesting confirmation of wetland boundaries along the New England Central Railroad Right-of-Way in Palmer in order to avoid sensitive areas while applying herbicides for weed control under the railroad’s Vegetation Management Plan. This application is for the verification of wetland boundaries only, and not for the actual application of herbicides.

Donald Blais, Jr. opened the public meeting at 7:25 PM but Representative Keith Morris was unable to participate in the call. The Interim Agent reported that the project involves the confirmation of the wetland delineation and verification of sensitive areas along the railroad right-of-way in Palmer and is not for the application of herbicides. The verification was last done in 2016 and there may have been minor modifications to the wetland delineation since then. The railroad uses a color coding system in which railroad ties are painted with various colors to indicate the location of sensitive areas; yellow marks the limits of the no spray zone, blue marks the limits of the buffer/restricted spray zone, and white marks the limits of sensitive areas. The railroad treats the entire right-of-way as a restricted spray zone, and therefore only the “no spray” (yellow) zones are remarked each year. In addition, an Environmental Consultant is required to ride with the licensed herbicide applicator during herbicide application to ensure that “no spray” zones are located in the field and are not sprayed.

Peter Izyk asked if the Board of Health reviews the railroad’s Vegetation Management Plan or Yearly Operational Plan and provides comment with respect to private wells in proximity to the railroad right of way. The Interim Agent informed him that the railroad is likely aware of this information, but that she is not sure whether or not the Board of Health reviews the VMP or YOP.

Donald Blais, Jr. opened the meeting for comments or questions by the PCC and members of the general public; no one wished to comment on the project at this time.

**Motion made by Dave Cotter to close the public meeting for the RDA submitted by Keith Morris for the RDA submitted for delineation verification along the New England Central Railroad \Right-of-Way at 7:32 PM**

**Motion seconded by Peter Izyk**

**No further discussion**

**Role call vote: Donald Blais, Jr. – aye; Peter Izyk – aye; Nicholas Zeo – aye; Dave Cotter – aye; Brenda Cole - aye**

**Motion Caries 5-0-0**

**Motion made by Peter Izyk to make a Positive Determination, Box 2a that the boundary delineations of the following resource areas described on the referened plans are confirmed as accurate. Therefore, the resource area boundaries confirmed in this Determination are binding to all decisions rendered pursuant to the Wetlands Protection Act and its Regulations regarding such boundaries for as long as this Determination is valid: The boundaries confirmed by this Determination are strictly for the application of herbicides to control “target vegetation” and shall not apply to any project other than New England Central Railroad’s Vegetation Management Plan (VMP) and Yearly Operational Plan (YOP)**

**Motion seconded by Dave Cotter**

**No further discussion**

**Role call vote: Donald Blais, Jr. – aye; Dorothy Lawrence – aye; Peter Izyk – aye; Nicholas Zeo – aye; Dave Cotter – aye; Brenda Cole - aye**

**Motion Caries 5-0-0**

- d. 7:35 PM RDA: Mass Central Railroad – delineation confirmation: The applicant is requesting confirmation of wetland boundaries along the Massachusetts Central Railroad Right-of-Way in Palmer in order to avoid sensitive areas while conducting vegetation control under the railroad’s Vegetation Management Plan. This application is for the verification of wetland boundaries only, and no work is proposed to occur within wetland resource areas.

Tom Lewis of TEC Associates was present to discuss the proposed project, stating that the project includes verification of the wetland delineation and locations of sensitive areas along the Massachusetts Central Railroad Right-of-Way. Tom Lewis explained that the railroad is required to have a Vegetation Management Plan (VMP) per the MA Right-of-Way Management Regulations, which is enforced by the Massachusetts Department of Agricultural Resources (MDAR), and lasts for a period of five (5) years; the railroad is now in the process of renewing the VMP. Herbicides can be applied no closer than 10-feet to the limits of BVW or other resource areas within the Buffer Zone, and only one (1) herbicide application can occur within the Buffer Zone in a given year.

Peter Izyk asked if the Board of Health comments on the VMP/YOP regarding the location of private water supply wells in close proximity to the railroad right-of-way. Tom Lewis explained that the town will be provided with a copy of the VMP upon approval, and that there is a 45-day public comment period on the YOP which includes all of the relevant information for right-of-way management activities for a given year; the YOP is provided to the Board of Health and Town Manager for review on an annual basis. He added that he performed an inspection along the railroad in 2020 in preparation for the VMP renewal and did not observe any new construction in proximity to the right-of-way, which would indicate the presence of new water supply wells.

Donald Blais, Jr. opened the meeting for comments or questions by the PCC and members of the general public; no one wished to comment on the project at this time.

**Motion made by Dave Cotter to close the public meeting for the RDA submitted by TEC Associates for the RDA submitted for delineation verification along the Massachusetts Central Railroad Right-of-Way at 7:39 PM**

**Motion seconded by Peter Izyk**

**No further discussion**

**Role call vote: Donald Blais, Jr. – aye; Peter Izyk – aye; Nicholas Zeo – aye; Dave Cotter – aye; Brenda Cole - aye**

**Motion Caries 5-0-0**

**Motion made by Brenda Cole to make a Positive Determination, Box 2a that the boundary delineations of the following resource areas described on the referened plans are confirmed as accurate. Therefore, the resource area boundaries confirmed in this Determination are binding to all decisions rendered pursuant to the Wetlands Protection Act and its Regulations regarding such boundaries for as long as this Determination is valid: The boundaries confirmed by this Determination are strictly for the application of herbicides to control “target vegetation” and shall not apply to any project other than Massachusetts Central Railroad’s Vegetation Managment Plan (VMP) and Yearly Operational Plan (YOP)**

**Motion seconded by Dave Cotter**

**No further discussion**

**Role call vote: Donald Blais, Jr. – aye; Dorothy Lawrence – aye; Peter Izyk – aye; Nicholas Zeo – aye; Dave Cotter – aye; Brenda Cole - aye**

**Motion Caries 5-0-0**

- e. 7:43 PM Notice of Intent (NOI) DEP #256-353 – New England Power Company: X176 Transmission Line (ROW): The applicant has submitted a Notice of Intent for activities associated with proposed maintenance and improvements at up to thirty-three (33) structures along the X176 Transmission Line Right-of-Way (ROW). The work is proposed within Bordering Vegetated Wetlands (BVW), Land Under Water (LUW), the 100-foot Buffer Zone to BVW, Bordering Land Subject to Flooding (BLSF), 200-foot Riverfront Area, and the locally protected 50-foot No Disturb Zone to adjacent wetlands. Portions of the proposed project are also located within Natural Heritage and Endangered Species Program (NHESP) Priority and Estimated Habitats.

The applicant requested a continuance of the public hearing until 6/1/2021 at 7 PM in order for peer review of the project to occur.

**Motion made by Dave Cotter to continue the public hearing for DEP # 256-0353 for maintenance activities along the NEPC X176 Transmission Line Right-of-Way until 5/18/2021 at 7 PM**

**Motion seconded by Nick Zeo**

**No further discussion**

**Role call vote: Donald Blais, Jr. – aye; Dorothy Lawrence – aye; Peter Izyk – abstain; Nicholas Zeo – aye; Dave Cotter – aye; Brenda Cole - aye**

**Motion Caries 4-0-1 (Peter Izyk abstained)**

**8. Violations & Enforcement**

- a. DEP # 256-0346: Bondsville Water Line

The Interim Agent was informed of violations for the Bondsville Water Line project, specifically pertaining to the cutting of vegetation beyond the erosion sediment control line and placement of cut vegetation on top of the erosion sediment control line. The Interim Agent has contacted the project applicant to schedule an inspection and will report back with her findings after an inspection has occurred.

- b. DEP # 256-0332: L12 Breckenridge Street, solar array

The Interim Agent received correspondence from Nexamp regarding the issuance of a Certificate of Compliance for the solar project at L12 Breckenridge Street. Upon review of the project filing, two (2) outstanding Enforcement Orders were discovered, which required the restoration of wetland resource areas

resulting from unauthorized alteration to wetlands. To the best of the Interim Agent's knowledge, there has been no effort to come into compliance with the Enforcement Orders. The Interim Agent will schedule an inspection with Nexamp to review the current condition of the site and to determine what remaining restoration activities must occur in order to bring the site into compliance with the Enforcement Orders, the Order of Conditions issued for the Project, and the WPA Regulations.

## 9. New/Old Business

### a. Community Rain Barrel & Compost Bin Program: Friday, June 25<sup>th</sup>, 2021 from 3-7 PM

The PCC is sponsoring the Community Rain Barrel & Compost Bin Program and has already received a few orders for compost bins at this time. The PCC will order the compost bins and will find a location to store them. Residents can purchase rain barrels and compost bins at a discounted price. The pickup date for the rain barrels and compost bins will occur on 6/25/2021 at the Swift River Greenbelt Conservation Area and cul-de-sac off First Street. Pickup will occur from 3 to 7 PM.

### b. Asset Management Grant – stormwater system mapping ongoing

The Assistant has been working with Tighe & Bond to map the municipal stormwater system as required under the ongoing Asset Management grant. The Assistant is required to provide 120 hours of time to count towards the match component of the grant, and is about half way done with her hours at this time.

### a. Earth Day Clean-up: Saturday, May 8, 2021 from 9 AM to 12 PM

The PCC postponed the 2021 Earth Day river cleanup to 5/8/2021 from 9 AM to 12 PM at Lavolette Field due to a snow storm that occurred on 4/16/2021 in which we got at least 6-inches of snow. Registration began at 8:30 AM and there were 57 volunteers who participated in the event, including Town Manager Ryan McNutt. Only one person submitted photos for the photo contest, so she will automatically win the \$100 Amazon gift card.

### b. Discuss in-person meetings

Donald Blais, Jr. reported that COVID-19 restrictions will be lifted on 5/29/2021 and wanted to discuss the option of resuming in-person meetings with the PCC. Dave Cotter asked if masks would be required for in-person meetings. Brenda Cole suggested that the PCC double-check whether or not masks will still be required for in-person meetings, and proposed that the PCC hold one (1) more virtual meeting on 6/1/2021 prior to resuming in-person meetings on 6/15/2021 when the State of Emergency due to COVID-19 will also be lifted. The Interim Agent added that the Town Manager said the PCC could resume in-person meetings whenever they choose, but to pay attention in the language for legal notices and agenda postings. Nick Zeo asked about the option to hold hybrid meetings, via Zoom and in-person. The Interim Agent will have to check on this option with MACC and MSMCP. The PCC decided that they would resume in-person meetings without masks on 6/15/2021.

### c. OSRP Update – Meeting Dates

The Interim Agent is working to finalize the first meeting of the Open Space Update Committee, which will tentatively occur in the end of June 2021.

### d. Warren Wastewater Treatment Facility: treatment system nonfunctional



The Interim Agent received notification from the Town of Warren regarding the discharge of “undertreated” wastewater into the Quaboag River as a result of the seasonal chlorine treatment system which is not functioning at this time. The discharge of untreated wastewater was reported to DEP Bureau of Wastewater in the event that the Town of Warren has not reported the discharge.

**10. Set Next Meeting Date**

- a. The next meeting of the PCC is scheduled to occur on Tuesday, June 1<sup>st</sup>, 2021 at 6:30 PM.

**11. Meeting Adjourned: 8:28 PM**

**Motion made by Dave Cotter to adjourn at 8:28 PM**

**Motion was seconded by Peter Izyk**

**No further discussion**

**Role call vote: Donald Blais, Jr. – aye; Peter Izyk – aye; David Cotter – aye; Nicholas Zeo – aye; Brenda Cole – aye**

**Vote was Unanimous – Motion Caries**

Sincerely Submitted,  
Sarah A. Fortune  
Interim Conservation Agent



# TOWN OF PALMER CONSERVATION COMMISSION

## Meeting Documents

**Tuesday, May 18<sup>th</sup>, 2021 – 6:30 PM**  
**LOCATION: VIRTUAL VIA ZOOM**

Donald Blais, Chair  
Dorothy Lawrence, Vice Chair  
David Cotter  
Peter Izyk  
Nicholas Zeo  
Brenda Cole  
Mike Swiatek

Sarah Fortune, Interim  
Agent

The following is a list of documents used at the above-mentioned meeting, in addition to those included in the agenda packet which is part of the official record of the meeting:

<b>Number</b>	<b>Description</b>	<b>Agenda Item</b>	<b>Notes</b>
1.	Meeting Minutes: 4/6/2021, 5/4/2021	Approval of Minutes	Retained in 2021 minutes binder
2.	Notice of Intent: NEPC – X176 Transmission Line ROW Maintenance Activities	Schedule of Public Hearings & Meetings	Retained in file for DEP # 256-0353
3.	Site plans: NEPC – X176 Transmission Line ROW Maintenance Activities	Schedule of Public Hearings & Meetings	Retained in file for DEP # 256-0353
4.	DEP file comments: NEPC – X176 Transmission Line ROW Maintenance Activities	Schedule of Public Hearings & Meetings	Retained in file for DEP # 256-0353
5.	DEP file comments: NEPC – X176 Transmission Line ROW Maintenance Activities	Schedule of Public Hearings & Meetings	Retained in file for DEP # 256-0350
6.	Revised Restoration Plan: NEPC – X176 Transmission Line ROW Maintenance Activities	Schedule of Public Hearings & Meetings	Retained in file for DEP # 256-0350
7.	Request for Determination of Applicabilty (RDA): MassDOT – Vegetation Clearing along I-90	Schedule of Public Hearings & Meetings	Retained in file for RDA: MassDOT – Vegetation Clearing along I-90
8.	Clearing Limits Map: MassDOT – Vegetation Clearing along I-90	Schedule of Public Hearings & Meetings	Retained in file for RDA: MassDOT – Vegetation Clearing along I-90
9.	Enviromental Resources Map: MassDOT – Vegetation Clearing along I-90	Schedule of Public Hearings & Meetings	Retained in file for RDA: MassDOT – Vegetation Clearing along I-90
10.	Request for Determination of Applicabilty (RDA): MECO – Utility Pole Installation, 3090 Palmer Street	Schedule of Public Hearings & Meetings	Retained in file for RDA: MECO – Utility Pole Installation, 3090 Palmer Street
11.	USGS Site Locus Map: MECO – Utility Pole Installation, 3090 Palmer Street	Schedule of Public Hearings & Meetings	Retained in file for RDA: MECO – Utility Pole Installation, 3090 Palmer Street
12.	Environmental Resources Map: MECO – Utility Pole Installation, 3090 Palmer Street	Schedule of Public Hearings & Meetings	Retained in file for RDA: MECO – Utility Pole Installation, 3090 Palmer Street
13.	FEMA FIRM: MECO – Utility Pole Installation, 3090 Palmer Street	Schedule of Public Hearings & Meetings	Retained in file for RDA: MECO – Utility Pole Installation, 3090 Palmer

			12Street
14.	Request for Determination of Applicabilty (RDA): New England Central Railroad – delineation confirmation	Schedule of Public Hearings & Meetings	Retained in file for RDA: New England Central Railroad – delineation confirmation
15.	Sensitive Area Marking Key – New England Central Railroad	Schedule of Public Hearings & Meetings	Retained in file for RDA: New England Central Railroad – delineation confirmation
16.	Request for Determination of Applicabilty (RDA): Massachusetts Central Railroad – delineation confirmation	Schedule of Public Hearings & Meetings	Retained in file for RDA: Massachusetts Central Railroad – delineation confirmation
17.	Resoure Area Delineation Maps – Massachusetts Central Railroad	Schedule of Public Hearings & Meetings	Retained in file for RDA: Massachusetts Central Railroad – delineation confirmation